
 

1 | P a g e  
 

Permanent Building Committee Meeting Minutes 
Wednesday, October 27, 2021 

Zoom Meeting  
Approved: November 3, 2021 

 
 

PBC Members present: Cindy Russo, Chair; Rick Maiore, Vice Chair; Guy Hermann; Jeff 
Hayes, Facilities Manager/Building Inspector.        
 
Attending:  Marie Sobalvarro, Assistant Town Administrator; Guy Oliva, Council-on-Aging 
(“COA”) Subcommittee Representative; Debbie Thompson, COA Director; Christopher 
Musorofiti & Chelsea Griffin Knott, Gale Associates (herein “Gale”); Joan Eliyesil, The Harvard 
Press; Rick Sicard, Fire Chief; Tim Bragan, Town Administrator.   
 
Ms. Russo called the meeting to order at approximately 9:06 a.m., and advised of the Remote 
Meeting procedures.    
 
 
REVIEW AND APPROVE MINUTES OF 10/13/21 & 10/15/21 
 
Ms. Russo indicated that Minutes review would be tabled until a meeting where more members 
are in attendance.   
 
OLD LIBRARY ROOF PROJECT:  BID REVIEW AND AUTHORIZATION TO CONTRACT  
 
Mr. Musorofiti stated that the low bidder was MDM Engineering (herein “MDM”) who submitted a 
a base bid of $880,000, a cumulative bid inclusive of Alternate 1 of 916,000, and cumulative bid 
inclusive of Alternate 1 & 2 of $991,000.  Mr. Musorofiti advised that this was below Gale’s 
estimated cost of $1,146,750.  He further stated that based on Gale’s examination of MDM’s 
contractor references, Gale would have no objection to the Town awarding any of the bid 
scenarios to MDM. Mr. Musorofiti recommend the Town consider awarding the bid to include at 
least Alternate 1, but suggested including Alternates 1 & 2 to ensure materials used in all 
phases match. Ms. Sobalvarro advised that the total project budget is $1.356 million.  Mr. 
Musorofiti stated that Gale’s contract includes up to $91,020, though he does not expect to 
exhaust that amount. Ms. Russo stated that the total project budget includes enough for the 
construction and contingency.  Mr. Musorofiti advised that MDM is historically a low bidder and 
does a lot of public sector work.  He further indicated that while MDM will need oversight, Gale 
has observed favorable results working with MDM in the past.     
 
The Members also discussed Gale’s offer to provide supervision in addition to the established 
weekly meetings.  Mr. Hayes stated that he believes the weekly meetings will be sufficient 
unless unforeseen issues are uncovered.   He further advised that, while seeing a record 
number of building permits at this time, he will have several hours a week available for 
inspections and oversight of the project.  Mr. Musorofiti agreed that most of the project oversight 
can occur during the weekly visit, and that a couple of additional visits could be handled by 
himself or Ms. Knott as a part of their time and expense services.  Ms. Russo stated that a 
decision on the issue was not needed presently.   
 
Mr. Maiore made the motion to award the bid to MDM; Mr. Hermann seconded.  All were in 
favor.   



 

2 | P a g e  
 

 
It was agreed that Gale will generate the contract and give MDM notice of the award for both 
alternates.  Ms. Sobalvarro and Mr. Musorofiti confirmed that the work will not begin until the 
executed contract is in hand.     
 
The PBC members considered an invoice from Gale for the bid phase services in the amount of 
$2077.50.  Mr. Hermann made a motion to approve the invoice; Mr. Maiore seconded.  All were 
in favor.   
 
UPDATE ON THE LANCASTER COUNTY ROAD PROPERTY 
 
Ms. Sobalvarro advised that the Select Board will review on November 2nd a draft Purchase & 
Sale Agreement to provide conditional approval for signature based on the results of the 
election.   
 
The PBC members considered an invoice from DAI in the amount of $24,880. Ms. Sobalvarro 
confirmed the invoice appears consistent with the phase of completion.  Mr. Maiore made a 
motion to approve the invoice; Mr. Hermann seconded.  All in favor.   
 
UPDATE ON THE DPW PROJECT 
 
The PBC Members considered an invoice from CBI in the amount of $24,637.00.  Mr. Hermann 
made a motion to approve payment of the invoice; Mr. Maiore seconded.  All in favor.    
 
 
UPDATE ON THE FIRE STATION PROJECT 
 
Chief Sicard reported on his meeting with the architect at which they discussed the priorities of 
the Fire Department’s needs currently and those going forward.   Chief Sicard stated that they 
discussed the possibilities of using the Hildreth House lot and/or building in conjunction with a 
new Fire Station.  Chief Sicard expects the architect will report back to him shortly with 
description of how they are able to assist going forward and what it would cost to prepare 
design drawings.     
 
 
ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA 
 
Ms. Russo advised that the Harvard Press asked whether the PBC plans to meet in person in 
the near future and, if so, whether a member would be willing to be responsible for the recording 
equipment so that The Harvard Press can continue to report on the meetings by video.  Mr. 
Maiore stated that it is imperative that the PBC meetings are covered by The Harvard Press.  
Mr. Hermann and Mr. Hayes voiced their preference to continue with Zoom meetings.  Ms. 
Russo and Mr. Maiore expressed concern that masked meeting participants, observing the 
current requirement in Town Hall, would not be easily heard on the recordings.  The members 
agreed to continue meeting via Zoom for the foreseeable future.  
 
Mr. Maiore made a motion to adjourn at approximately 9:28 a.m.; Mr. Hermann seconded.  All 
were in favor.    
. 
 
 



 

3 | P a g e  
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

Alison Flynn 

 

 

Referenced Documents: 

• Agenda 
• Draft minutes of 10/13/21 and 10/15/21 
• CBI Invoice No. 34264, dated 9/29/21 
• Gale Invoice No. 2109233, dated 10/12/21 
• DAI Invoice No. DG-000037762, dated 10/19/21 

 


